



County Buildings, Stafford DDI (01785) 276133
Please ask for Mike Bradbury Email: michael.bradbury@staffordshire.gov.uk

Pensions Committee

Friday, 8 December 2017 10.00 am Oak Room, County Buildings, Stafford

> John Tradewell Director of Strategy, Governance and Change 30 November 2017

AGENDA

PART ONE

- 1. Apologies
- 2. **Declarations of Interest**
- 3. Minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2017 (Pages 1 6)
- 4. CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework (Pages 7 12)

Report of the Director of Finance and Resources

5. Exclusion of the Public

PART TWO

6. Exempt minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2017 (Pages 13 - 18) (Exemption paragraph 3)

7. **The Local Government Pension Scheme Administration- Breaches** (Pages 19 - 36) (Exemption paragraph 3)

Report of the Director of Finance and Resources

8. **LGPS Regulations - Admitted Bodies** (Pages 37 - 40) (Exemption paragraph 3)

Report of the Director of Finance and Resources

9. Pooling of LGPS Investments

(Exemption paragraph 3)

Oral Report of the Director of Finance and Resources

Membership

Ben Adams Geoff Locke (Co-Optee)
Philip Atkins, OBE Peter Noskiw (Co-Optee)

Nigel Caine (Co-Optee) Mike Sutherland
Derek Davis, OBE Stephen Sweeney
Ann Edgeller (Vice-Chairman) Martyn Tittley

Colin Greatorex Kevin Upton (Co-Optee)

Sue Insull (Co-Optee) Vacancy

Note for Members of the Press and Public

Filming of Meetings

The Open (public) section of this meeting may be filmed for live or later broadcasting or other use, and, if you are at the meeting, you may be filmed, and are deemed to have agreed to being filmed and to the use of the recording for broadcast and/or other purposes.

Recording by Press and Public

Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is permitted from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of the chairman, disrupt the meeting.

Minutes of the Pensions Committee Meeting held on 20 October 2017

Present:

Attendance

Ben Adams Peter Noskiw (Co-opted Member)

Derek Davis, OBE Mike Sutherland
Ann Edgeller (in the Chair) Stephen Sweeney

Colin Greatorex Martyn Tittley

Sue Insull (Co-opted Member) Kevin Upton (Co-opted Member)

Geoff Locke (Co-opted Member)

Also in attendance: Gordon Alcott, Corrina Bradley and Ian Jenkinson (Local Pensions Board Members).

Apologies: Robert Marshall

PART ONE

21. County Councillor Robbie Marshall

The Chairman reported that County Councillor Robbie Marshall was seriously ill and was currently in the Queen Elizabeth Hospital. The Committee extended their thoughts and prayers to Mr Marshall and to his family.

22. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.

23. Minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2017

The Director of Finance and Resources informed Members that the Local Pensions Board had agreed to the Committee's request to undertake a detailed review of the Pension Fund's Risk Register.

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Pensions Committee held on 7 July 2017 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

24. Minutes of the Pensions Panel held on 5 September 2017

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Pensions Panel held on 5 September 2017 be noted.

25. Staffordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts Audit 2016/17

The Committee were informed that, under regulations, the Pension Fund had to publish an annual report which included the accounts. The external auditors were also obliged to issue a statement on the accounts.

The Director of Finance and Resources submitted the draft Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17 for the Staffordshire Pension Fund, explaining the need for formal approval of its contents by members prior to its publication.

The Pension Fund accounts were included within the County Council's Statement of Accounts and were reported to the County Council's Audit Committee on 25 September 2017.

The Director summarised the Funds accounts and made particular reference to the inclusion in the document of the independent auditors report on those accounts which stated that they were consistent with those included within Staffordshire County Council's Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017.

RESOLVED – (a) That the 2016/17 Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts (Appendix 1 to the report) be approved and that the external auditor's statement on page 74 be noted.

(b) That the separate report from the external auditors entitled: Staffordshire Pension Fund – Audit Results Report Year ended 31 March 2016 (Appendix 2 to the report), be noted.

26. Implementation of the Markets in Financial instruments Directive (MiFID II)

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Finance and Resources outlining the impact of the implementation of the European Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 2014/65 (MiFID II), and in particular, the risk to Staffordshire County Council as the administering authority for the Staffordshire Pension Fund of becoming a retail client on 3 January 2018.

The Committee were informed that under the current UK regulatory framework, local authorities were automatically categorised as 'per-se professional' clients in respect of non-MiFID scope business and were categorised as 'per-se professional' clients for MiFID scope business if they satisfied the MiFID Large Undertakings test. Local authorities that did not satisfy the Large Undertakings test may currently 'opt up' to elective professional client status if they fulfilled certain 'opt-up criteria'.

Following the introduction of MiFID II from 3 January 2018, local authorities would lose the automatic right to be categorised as per-se professional clients by banks, investment managers, brokers and advisors. Instead, all local authorities must be classified as 'retail clients' by these firms, unless they were 'opted up' by the firms to 'elective professional client' status. The criteria for 'opting up' in the UK was specified by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and required an assessment of quantitative factors (relating to the nature and scale of the client's business); and qualitative factors (relating to the expertise, experience and knowledge of key decision makers).

The assessment aimed to demonstrate whether the client was capable of making its own investment decisions and had an understanding of the risks involved. It was for the service provider to determine whether or not, based on the information submitted by clients, the appropriate 'opting up' criteria were met.

A move to retail client status would mean that all financial services firms like banks, investment managers, brokers and advisors would have to treat local authorities in the same way they did non-professional individuals and small businesses. This entails providing a raft of protections to ensure the suitability of investment products and the evidence that all risks and product features have been fully explained. Whilst this would provide a higher standard of protection for the client, it also involved more work and potentially cost, for both the firm and the client (investor), for the purpose of satisfying the regulator that all such requirements had been met.

These protections would ultimately mean that the Fund would be prevented from accessing a wide range of products and financial instruments which were deemed unsuitable for retail investors and yet essential for the Fund to implement and deliver an effective and diversified investment strategy. The Fund would also have fewer options in terms of which financial institutions or investment managers it could appoint, as many institutions currently serving local authorities were not licensed for retail business and might not wish to incur the costs involved in seeking additional regulatory permissions.

In electing for professional client status, the Fund would effectively forego the protections afforded to retail clients. The Committee noted that these protections were not currently enjoyed by the Fund anyway albeit the associated risks were mitigated through a range of different controls, including:

- access to independent actuarial and investment advice;
- the LGPS investment regulations;
- the Fund's own governance and policy framework;
- the County Council's Constitution and Scheme of Delegation;
- access and membership of professional networks; and
- an experienced and well qualified officer team

The Director explained that the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) and the Local Government Association (LGA), along with the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and the Investment Association (IA), had successfully lobbied the FCA to make the opt up 'test' better suited to the unique situation of local authorities. The latest guidance recognised the status of LGPS administering authorities as providing a 'pass' for the quantitative test while the qualitative test could now be performed on the administering authority as a collective, rather than on an individual basis.

The election to professional status must be completed with all financial institutions prior to the change of status on 3 January 2018. Failure to do so by local authorities would result in the financial institution having to take 'appropriate action' in accordance with their own internal compliance procedures, which could include terminating their relationship with the Fund.

SAB and the LGA had worked with the investment industry representative bodies, including the Investment Association (IA) and the British Venture Capital Association (BVCA), to develop a standard opt up process including supporting information templates and pro-forma correspondence. This should enable a consistent approach to assessment and avoid authorities having to submit different information, in different formats to the various different financial institutions they used.

Applications for professional client status could be made in respect of either all services offered by an institution (irrespective of whether they were currently used), or a particular service only. Given that all future procurement would be undertaken by LGPS Central Ltd on the Fund's behalf, wherever possible, it made sense to limit applications to cover only those services currently used, particularly if this was likely to speed up the assessment process. It was therefore recommended that the Director of Finance and Resources be given delegated authority to determine the most appropriate basis of the application; either via full or single service.

In response to a question from Mr Greatorex in relation to the impact of other Funds in LGPS Central deciding not to opt up, the Director of Finance and Resources confirmed that it was the intention of all of the Funds within the pool to opt up. It was also noted that LGPS Central Ltd would be professional investors in their own right so would not need to opt up with the financial institutions they appoint. Staffordshire Pension Fund would however need to opt up with LGPS Central in order to access the full range of services and sub-funds on offer. In response to a question from Mr Adams concerning the position nationally, the Director indicated that all local government pension schemes wanted the ability to opt up.

In response to a question from Mr Tittley concerning Staffordshire Fire and Rescue and whether they were able to opt up, the Director indicated that the Staffordshire County Council Treasury Services Team was in the process of facilitating that for them.

The Committee noted that elections to professional status would still be required for every financial institution the Fund used outside the pool. This would include investment managers who were retained to manage legacy assets pending their transition into the pool.

RESOLVED – (a) That the requirements of MiFID II and the potential impact on the Staffordshire Pension Fund of losing professional client status from 3 January 2018 be noted.

- (b) That it be noted that in electing for professional client status, the Staffordshire Pension Fund will automatically forego the protections afforded to retail clients as set out in Appendix 2 to the report.
- (c) That delegated authority be given to the Director of Finance and Resources to apply for elective professional client status for the Staffordshire Pension Fund with all relevant investment and financial institutions and determine the most appropriate basis of the application, either via full or single service.

27. Exclusion of the Public

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 indicated below

PART TWO

The Committee then proceeded to consider reports on the following issues:

- 28. Exempt minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2017 (Exemption paragraph 3)
- 29. Exempt minutes of the Pensions Panel held on 5 September 2017 (Exemption paragraph 3)
- **30.** Local Government Pensions Scheme Administration (Exemption paragraph 3)
- **31. Monitoring of Fund Liabilities** (Exemption paragraph 3)
- **32.** Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Exemption paragraph 3)
- **33. Pooling of LGPS Investments** (Exemption paragraph 3)
- 34. Janet Caiazzo

Chairman

Local Members In	nterest
Nil	

PENSIONS COMMITTEE - 8 DECEMBER 2017

Report of the Director of Finance and Resources

CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework

Recommendation of the Chair

- 1. That the Pensions Committee;
 - (i) note the contents of this report in relation to the CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework (CIPFA KSF) and reaffirm their commitment to such;
 - (ii) note the high level Training Plan, attached at Appendix 2 and the proposed levels of Competency;
 - (iii) note that a Training Log is being maintained by the Director of Finance and Resources and that "just in time" training at Pensions Committee and Pensions Panel will be identified on meeting agendas and recorded on the Training Log; and
 - (iv) note that attendance at Pensions Committee and Pensions Panel and a summary of training delivered is shown in the Staffordshire Pension Fund's Annual Report and Accounts.

Background

- 2. This report aims to reaffirm the commitment of the Pensions Committee who, at its meeting on 20 March 2015, agreed a recommendation 'that the Committee adopt a training plan covering the 8 key knowledge areas of the CIPFA KSF. For reference, these are listed below:
 - Pensions Legislative
 - Pensions Governance
 - o Pensions Administration (Local Pensions Board only)
 - Pensions Accounting and Auditing Standards
 - o Pensions Services, procurement and relationship management
 - Investment performance and risk management
 - o Financial markets and products knowledge
 - o Actuarial methods, standards and practices
- 3. Training for Pensions Committee members under the CIPFA KSF is not mandatory, as it is for the Local Pensions Board, but it is considered to be best practice and is strongly encouraged. Thorough knowledge of the key areas of the Pension Fund by Members of the Pensions Committee and Senior Officers is vital for proper governance of the scheme.

Recording of Training

- 4. Following today's meeting Members will be requested to complete a Training Needs Assessment (TNA) measuring themselves against the CIPFA KSF in order to assess the Committee's current areas of knowledge and expertise, both as individuals and as a collective. Once Officers have analysed the results of the TNA, a more focused Training Plan (see Appendix 2) aimed at achieving certain levels of Competency, will be put in place to address areas for specific training needs going forward. It is anticipated that a review of the TNA will be carried out annually.
- 5. There is also a separate Training Log in place for Pensions Committee Members and this will be updated regularly to record all training which has taken place; this will include any training delivered as part of routine Committee Meetings. Together with a Register of Attendance, this information will form part of the Fund's Annual Report and Accounts. It may also be required from time to time to demonstrate the knowledge of Pensions Committee Members. For example, as part of the documents submitted in requests to 'opt up' the Pension Fund to 'professional investor' status under the new MIFID II regulations (as reported to Committee on 20 October 2017).

Recommended Training

- 6. Ideally, Training will be delivered collectively and in a variety of formats. Both external providers, such as Pentag and the Fund's Actuary, Hymans Robertson will be used, alongside internal training delivered by Pension Fund Officers. Some training will be bespoke, some delivered jointly with the Local Pensions Board and some will be 'just in time'. Members will be asked to comment on such and express any preferences as part of the TNA review.
- 7. Pensions Committee Members attended an introductory training session delivered by Pentag back in July 2017. As this covered several of the areas of the CIPFA KSF, at a strategic level, Pensions Committee Members are also encouraged to complete further detailed training individually, such as that produced by the Pensions Regulator.
- 8. This is an online training programme covering many of the key areas of the CIPFA KSF (with the main exception being investments). This can be accessed by following the link below:

 https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/

Andrew Burns Director of Finance and Resources

Contact Melanie Stokes Telephone No. (01785) 276330

Background Documents: CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework

- **1. Equalities Implications:** There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.
- **2. Legal Implications:** There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.
- **3. Resources and Value for Money Implications:** The resource and value for money implications are embodied within the report.
- **4. Risk Implications:** The risk implications are dealt with in the body of the report
- **5. Climate Change Implications:** There are no major climate change implications arising from this report.
- **6. Health Impact Assessment screening** There are no health impact assessment implications arising from this report.

(subject to change)

TRAINING PLAN (November 2017)

Subject Area	Pensions Legislative	Pensions Governance	Pensions Administration	Pensions Accounting & Auditing Standards	Pensions Services Procurement & Relationship Management	Investment Performance & Risk Management	Financial Markets & Products Knowledge	Actuarial Methods, Standards & Practices
Member / Officer	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)
Members of Pensions Committee / Panel	3	3	2	3	3	4	4	3
Members of Pensions Board	5	4	4	3	3	3	3	4
Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer	3	3	3	3	3	4	4	4
Head of Pensions / Deputy S151/Pension Managers	5	5	5	4	5	5	5	5
Asst Pension Managers ບ ວ ດ	5	5	5	3	4	2	2	4
Φ Δ Accountants/ Senior Accountan	uts 4	4	2	5	4	5	5	4
Accountants	5	2	1	4	4	3	3	3
	Training Days				Delivered by	Ī	imeScale	

Additional Training

Proposed Competency Level

1 = No knowledge

2 = Limited knowledge and understanding

3 = Basic understanding

4 = Broad ability to comprehend and apply knowledge

5 = Sound understanding and ability to ask challenging questions

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

Agenda Item 7

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972